
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                             PHONE: 352/ 360-6727 
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                                   FAX: 352/ 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE  

SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 
10:00AM 

 
 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER:  
 

II. MEMBERS PRESENT:   
 

III.      MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Approve meeting minutes from May 7, 2019 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

 A.  International Car Wash (Alt Keys 1170621 & 1699754) 
 
Wicks Engineering submitted a new Site Plan application for a 3,200 square foot car 
wash facility on behalf of registered property owner. Existing zoning is C-2 General 
Commercial with a future land use of Commercial High Intensity.    

 
MEMBERS’ COMMENTS:   
 
ADJOURNMENT:   
 

  Board Members:     Board Members: 
 City Manager Gary La Venia, Chairman  Chief Eric Luce, Police Department, Vice Chair 
City Engineer BESH    Chief Donald Gilpin, Fire Department 
City Land Planner Greg Beliveau                                   Public Works Director Dale Bogle 
Building Official Jeff Gerling                                         Code Enforcement Officer Lori Davis 
Fire Inspector Dan Hickey                                              Lake County Public Works Department 
CDD Tracy Kelley 
 
 

 



 
   

 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                             PHONE: 352/ 360-6727 
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                                   FAX: 352/ 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE  

MAY 7, 2019 
10:00AM 

 
 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: Meeting called to order 10:05 A.M. 
 

II. MEMBERS PRESENT: Board members present with the exception of Jeff Gerling, 
Building Official, Chief Donald Gilpin, Fire Department, and Lori Davis, Code Enforcement. 
LPG Sherie Lindh attended on behalf of Greg Beliveau, City Land Planner, and Sargent 
David Cox attended on behalf of Chief Eric Luce, Police Department. 

 
III.      MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Motion to approve meeting minutes from March 

5, 2019 by Public Works Director Dale Bogle. Second by City Engineer Brett Tobias, BESH. 
Approved. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

 A.  Leesburg Fruit Company, Inc./Holloway Properties Inc. 
 
 Wicks Engineering submitted a rezoning application on behalf of registered property 
owners. The property is currently zoned CPUD with a current use of a plant nursery. The 
applicant is requesting rezoning to allow for a mixed use PUD as shown on the concept 
plan. The proposed PUD Zoning and Land Use Designation is intended to facilitate the 
development of a residential community with a commercial component. 

 
Applicant Engineer Ted Wicks gave introduction to the application and assured all outstanding 
recreation comments would be addressed as provided by City Land Planner LPG. Engineer 
Wicks would like to revise the concept plan to include sixty (60’) foot and seventy (70’) foot 
lots. LPG Sherie Lindh stated a commitment on lot sizes is needed to retain mixed use PUD in 
compliance with the Comprehensive Plan policy. Engineer Wicks and Realtor Dan Tatro, also 
in attendance, discussed the possibility of incorporating forty (40’) foot lots in the concept 
plan. LPG Lindh stated the City would like photos or renderings of exactly what the applicant 
is proposing on the lots and an area would have to be set aside for storage of extra vehicles to 
include boats and recreational vehicles as the small lot sizes will restrict parking. Engineer 
Wicks would like to market the smaller lots to seniors who do not prefer to live in a deed 
restricted community. Engineer Wicks asked if detached garages would be an option as 
opposed to attached garages. LPG Lindh replied the Land Development Regulations do not 
require garages so either attached or detached garages could be accepted. City Engineer Brett  

 
 
 

  Board Members:     Board Members: 
 City Manager Gary La Venia, Chairman  Chief Eric Luce, Police Department, Vice Chair 
City Engineer BESH                          Chief Donald Gilpin, Fire Department 
City Land Planner Greg Beliveau                                   Dale Bogle, Public Works Director  
Jeff Gerling, Building Official                                        Lori Davis, Code Enforcement 
Dan Hickey, Fire Inspector                                             Lake County Public Works Department 
Tracy Kelley, CDD 
 
 

 



 
   
Technical Review Committee May 7, 2019 Minutes 
Continued Page 2 of 2 

 
Tobias, BESH, responded if garages are not afforded for the smaller lots then cars may end up 
being parked all along the street, restricting the flow of traffic. Chairman Gary La Venia, City 
Manager, stated offset garages may be a possibility. Tracy Kelley, Community Development 
Director, stated in other areas alleyways are utilized so cars are not parked in front of the home 
or along the road. Engineer Wicks stated if forty (40’) foot lots are considered a conceptual 
plan will be submitted. 
 
Community Development Director Kelley made applicants aware sidewalks, curbing, and 
lighting is required by the City. Engineer Wicks acknowledged requirements and stated they 
will be completing a street lighting plan with the City of Leesburg. Public Works Director 
Bogle responded the Home Owner’s Association will be responsible for maintaining the street 
lights. 
 
City Engineer Tobias stated the Ordinance needs to be revised to incorporate the connection to 
Martin Luther King Boulevard into Phase I of the project. LPG Lindh notified the board that 
the city has not received an approved school concurrency application from Lake County 
Schools. Engineer Wicks responded the application has been submitted and will forward upon 
receipt. LPG Lindh stated Master Development Agreement will include setbacks for mixed lot 
sizes with percentage requirements for each lot size. LPG Lindh stated if a waiver is needed 
for the thirty (30%) percent maximum building coverage it will need to be requested by the 
applicant prior to approval and the minimum living size is thirteen-hundred (1300’) square feet 
per unit. 
 
Applicant Holloway, Holloway Properties, Inc., stated the well on the property has usable 
water. City Engineer Tobias responded public use of the well, other than irrigation, is required 
to be permitted and monitored by St. John’s River Water Management District as well as the 
city.  
 
LPG Lindh stated an updated title report will be required with the Master Development 
Agreement. CDD Kelley made applicant aware all documents must be submitted to the City 
with all comments addressed prior to June 13, 2019 to be considered at the June 20, 2019 
Planning and Zoning Board meeting. City Engineer Tobias stated connection to county roads 
will be permitted with Lake County Driveway Permits. CDD Kelley stated 911 addressing and 
road name reservations will be submitted to Lake County by the City with associated costs to 
be billed to the applicant. Applicant Holloway responded he would like road names to be 
family names and the north entrance has been lined up with the entrance to Mirror Lake 
Village subdivision. CDD Kelley stated at this time Lake County has not issued any formal 
comments and they will be contacted by our department to verify there are no additional 
comments.  

  
MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: No additional comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 10:39 A.M. 
 

























































 

Environmental 
and 

Natural Resource Assessment 
Prepared for 

Tejinder S. Grewal 
1330 Saxon Blvd. 

Orange City, FL 32763 
 
 

Prepared by 
Ray and Associates 

Planning and Environmental 
William (Bill) A. Ray, AICP & Environmental Specialist 

352-425-8881 

wrayassoc@aol.com 
 

 

William A. Ray, AICP, Senior Environmental Specialist 
 

 

April 25th, 2018 
Updated October 18th, 2018 to include 

Gopher Tortoise Survey 
Sand Skink Pre-Consultation (Update November 1st, 2018) 

Annual Update: 8.26.19 
 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 2 of 14 

 

Table of Contents 

 

I. Project Description 

 

II.  Site Description 

A. Soils 

B. Topography 
C. Plant Communities and Florida Land Use, Cover and Forms Classification 

D. Wetlands 

E. Threatened & Endangered Species 
 

III. Conclusion and Recommendation 

EXHIBITS 
 1.  Location 
 2.  Site Aerial 
 3.  Site Photos  

4.  Survey Transects 
 5.  FLUCFCS 

6.  Soils 
7. Topo 
8. Wetlands 
9. Bald Eagle Nest Locations 
10. Gopher Tortoise Survey (Update 10.18.2108) 
11. USFWS Email confirmation of Sand Skink No Habitat / No Effect 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 3 of 14 

 

I. Project Description 
The subject 1.74+/- Acre Site is located in North Central Lake County, in the Town of Fruitland 
Park. The subject property is located in Section 10, Township 19 South, Range 24 East. The 
subject site is further identified by the Lake County Property Appraiser as; 
 

Parcel Number Alternate Key # Acreage+/_ 

10-19-24-0003-000-6800 1170621 1.74 

 
(See Exhibit 1-Location Map and Exhibit 2-Site Aerial Map).  
 
The total site area project consists of approximately 1.74+/- Acres. The subject site is surrounded 
suburban Residential and Commercial uses. The area is continuing to develop in an Urban / 
Commercial manner.   
 
The Landowner/Developer proposes to clear, re-grade and construct improvements on the 
existing site in accordance with local land development regulations. Site development is 
proposed to accommodate adequate site construction, provision of utilities, site access, 
landscaping, proper site drainage and treatment of stormwater necessary to develop a 
Commercial use as detailed in site plans prepared by Wicks Engineering.  
 
Land Use types adjacent the project area includes existing Commercial services to the North 
and East, and South. Medium Density North West. The project obtains primary access via US 
27/441 and CR 25A. 
 
To construct the project, the applicant proposes to clear and grade the site in a manner 
sufficient to accommodate adequate access and parking, landscaping, proper site drainage and 
treatment of stormwater. See Site Plan prepared by Wicks Engineering. 
 
A “Phase I Environmental Site Assessment” may be completed by others. This report does not 
address CERCLA compliance or associated requirements. 
 
Survey Methodology 
Pedestrian Surveys were conducted based upon North-South Transects beginning on the south 
property line with a Total of 11 Transects. A Pedestrian Survey was conducted on April 25th of 
2018. 
 
Surveys began on site approximately 9:30AM and continued to 12:30:00 PM. Temperature 
ranged from approximately 69o F to 72o F and in an acceptable range for wildlife observations. 
Skies were mostly clear. 
 
The approximate location of the Pedestrian Transects can be seen on Exhibit 4. 
 
Current photos of the Site and existing use can be seen on Exhibit 3. 
Update Photos can be seen on Exhibit 3.1: Photos 8.26.19 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 4 of 14 

 

 
II. Site Description 

A. SOILS 
Soils on the Project Site are depicted on Exhibit 6. The soil conditions observed on site 
are dense and compact. Candler Sand, 0 to 5 percent slopes, is the predominate soil 
found on site.  
 
The soil survey geological (SSURGO) database created by the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) for Lake County, Florida, identifies the following soil types 
as occurring within the project site:  
 
8 - Candler sand 0% to 5% slopes 
This is a gentle to moderate sloping, Type A, excessively well drained soil. This soil 

occurs as both small and large areas of the sandy uplands. Water table is typically at a 

depth of more than 72 inches. Native vegetation typically is comprised of Live Oaks, 

Laurel Oaks, Pines, native grasses and shrubs. 

B. PLANT COMMUNITETIES and FLORIDA LAND USE, COVER and FORMS 
CLASSIFICATION 

 
Land use types located within the proposed Project Site were identified through a review 
of color aerials and site investigations. The on-site land use forms were classified using 
the Florida Land Use, Cover and Forms Classification System (FLUCFCS) ) as defined 
by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT, 1999) and the Florida Land Use 
Cover Classification System (FLUCCS) as defined by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP 2004-2011), see Exhibit 6 – FLUCCS Map.  
 
General:  
Site conditions are typical of those found in Lake County and Central Florida. The site 
was historically cleared and improved for the planting of Citrus. Overtime citrus uses 
either died off due to disease or freezing temperatures. Through the process of natural 
succession various trees, shrubs and herbaceous vegetation have obtained dominance.  
 
The site is surrounded on the   

East:     Highway and Low Density/Commercial, 
South:   Commercial,  
West:   Upland Mixed – Coniferous / Hardwood, 
North: Commercial 
 

The region is continuing to develop in a suburban/urban manner. There is 1 Land Use 
Cover identified on the subject site.  
 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 5 of 14 

 

Based on information obtained from FDEP, field observations and aerial interpretation, 
the following land use classifications (FLUCCS) best describe the vegetative 
communities present on-site and adjacent to the subject site: 

 
  Subject site: 
 

 1. FLUCCS – 4340, Upland Mixed Coniferous/Hardwood 
This class is reserved for those forested areas in which neither upland conifers 
nor hardwoods achieve a 66 percent crown canopy dominance. 

 
Surrounding and Adjacent Land Use: 
 
1.   FLUCCS – 1100: Low density<2 dwelling units/acre   
This land use identified to the east and north west the subject site. 

 
2.  FLUCCS - 1400, Commercial and Services 

 This land use is identified to the North and South of the subject site. 
 
 3.  FLUCCS – 4340, Upland Mixed Coniferous/Hardwood 
 This land use is identified to the west of the subject site. 

 
The site is located in a suburban area of Lake County that is converting to more Urban 
and suburban uses. The biggest threat to the development of any high-quality wildlife 
habitat or sustainable natural ecosystem is primarily caused by fire exclusion. Vacant or 
Open lands become progressively less suitable for wildlife habitat as more non-fire 
resistant plants have established dominance over with time. In addition, the soil has 
been historically altered and compacted over time through management and normal site 
maintenance.  

 
The subject is has a minimally maintained shrub/shrub understory with a dominate tree 
canopy of Oaks, Golden rain tree (Koelreuteria elegans) China Berry (Melia azedarach; 
both are invasive and non-native) and an understory dominated by Various shrubs, 
grapevines and grasses typically associated with Central Florida urban wooded areas.  
  
 Trees & Shrubs 

Live oak    (Q. virginiana), 
Laurel oak  (Q. laurifolia) 
Chickasaw Plumb   (Prunus angustifolia 
Carolina Laurel Cherry  (Prunus caroliniana) 
Red Bay    (Persea borbonia) 
Cabbage Palm   (Sabal palmetto),  
Saw Palmetto   (Serenoa repens) 
Common Persimmon   (Diospyros virginiana) 

 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 6 of 14 

 

The groundcover and majority of the site is dominated by; 
Bahiagrass    (Paspalum sp.),  
Bermudagrass   (Cynodon sp.) 
Centipedegrass   (Eremochloa ophiuroides) 
Switchgrass    (Panicum virgatum) 
Florida Paspalum   (Paspalum floridanum) 
Sunflowers    (Helianthus spp.) 
Tickseeds    (Coreopsis spp.) 
Horsemint   (Monarda punctata) 
Broomsedge    (Andropogon virginicus) 
Greenbrier    (Smilax sp.)  
Grapevine    (Vitis sp.),  
Goldenrod    (Solidago sp.)  
Bluestem    (Schizachyrium sp),  
Blackberry   (Rubus spp.) 
Dogfennel   (Eupatorium capillifolium) 
Variable witchgrass   (Dichanthelium commutatum),  
Hairy Indigo    (Indigofera hirsute)  
Pusley       (Richardia scabra L.) 
Poaceae    (Saccharum alopecuroides) 
Lantana    (Lantana camara),  
Cactus    (Opuntia spp.) 
 
Non-Native / Invasive 

 
Chinaberry   (Melia azedarach) 
Golden rain tree  (Koelreuteria elegans) 
Camphor   (Cinnamomum camphora) 
St. Augustine Grass  (Stenotaphrum secundatum) 

 
This is not intended to be a 100% vegetative survey but rather provide a general 
acknowledgement of existing vegetation sufficient to provide a understanding of 
the existing site conditions.  

 

In the natural condition for Florida, periodic fire is important in setting back plant 
succession and maintaining viable ecosystems. There was no evidence 
observed on site to indicate any periodic or previous fires. 

 
The portion of the subject site that is proposed for development is surrounded by 
development or public streets to the North, South and East. The site is located in 
a sub-urbanizing area of Lake County. The absence of periodic fires has allow 
the ecosystem to change and various non-fire tolerant plant species to become 
established, exhibits low biodiversity and contains no scrub/shrub xeric plant 
communities of any significance. 
 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 7 of 14 

 

Due to the size of the upland portion of the site and the fact that it is isolated from 
any other upland habitats, and not part of ant regional upland wildlife corridor or 
ecosystem there is minimal ecological habitat value provided by the subject site. 
 
There are no other Land Uses associated with the subject site. The existing Land 
Cover is not Rare, Endangered or ecological unique to central Florida or the 
Region. 

 
C. TOPOPGRAPGY 
The Topography of the subject site can be seen on Exhibit 7. Elevation on site is 
generally uniform sloping from the east to west and south. Information obtained from 
FDEP indicates elevations between 96+/- in the south west area to an elevation of 
approximately 79’  in the eastern portion of the site. General contours can be seen on 
Exhibit 7.  
 
D. WETLANDS 
The subject site was evaluated for the presence of jurisdictional wetlands. General 
methodology detailed in Chapter 62-340 of the Florida Administrative Code and the 1987 
US Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual was followed. Soils, Flood 
Planes, Vegetation and other historical information was researched and analyzed during 
the site investigation.  
 
A review FDEP and the National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) together with Lake County’s 
GIS data base do not indicate the presence of jurisdictional wetlands on the subject site. 
Site investigation and field evaluation on April 25th, 2018 confirm the absence of 
Jurisdictional wetland on the subject site.  
 
See Exhibit 8 for the general location of the jurisdictional wetlands within the region 
based upon NWI mapping.  

 
E. THREANTEND and ENDANGERED SPECIES 
A literature review as well as professional experience and knowledge of the region was 
utilized to identify federally or state listed species most likely to be found within Lake 
County, Florida. The Project Site was then evaluated for the presence of those listed 
species identified by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and/or the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC). Site reviews were conducted 
by a Ray and Associates biologist on April 25th, 2018 to evaluate the property for 
potential presence of wildlife listed for protection.  
 
The USFWS identifies the subject site as a Tier 5 Habitat. Tier 5 Habitats are those 
where we may have a measurable workload and little resource payoff. In the regulatory 
arena, these could be considered personnel “sinks”. However, they may also present 
restoration opportunities to higher value habitats. These include: 

▪ Agriculture 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 8 of 14 

 

▪ Canal/Ditch 

▪ Disturbed Transitional 

▪ Urban/Developed 

 
The subject project does not propose development of any identified “higher value 
habitats” by the Florida Natural Area Inventory (FNAI) or Strategic Habitat Conservation 
Areas as identified by FDEP. 
 
The observation of potential habitat for 3 species listed for protection, or their habitat, 
was identified on the subject site. These species and the results of regulatory analysis 
are found below. 

 
Gopher Tortoise, Gopherus polyphemus 
Active, Potentially Occupied and Abandoned, Gopher Tortoise burrows were not 
observed on the project site. Gopher tortoises are a threatened wildlife species by the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) and are protected by state 
law, Chapter 68A–27, Florida Administrative Code. In accordance with the requirements 
of Rules 68A-25.002 and 68A-27.004 (F.A.C.), a permit for a gopher tortoise 
capture/relocation/release activity must be secured from FWC before initiating any 
relocation work. Gopher tortoises must be relocated or impacts to their burrows avoided 
in accordance with FWC Guidelines before any land clearing for development takes 
place. Property owners must obtain permits from the Florida Fish and Wildlife 
Conservation Commission before they can move or relocate any Gopher Tortoises.  

  
It is recommended that 90 days prior to construction and site disturbance of those lands 
to be developed a physical survey for the Presence/Absence of Active, Inactive/Potential 
Occupied, or Abandoned Gopher Tortoise Borrows be completed in accordance with 
FWC Gopher Tortoise Guidelines. If Active or Potentially Active Gopher Tortoise 
Burrows are identified FWC regulations governing Gopher Tortoise protection, burrow 
excavation, relocation and mitigation are to be complied with.  
 
Update:  100% of the subject site was surveyed for the presence of Active/ potentially 
Active and abandoned Gopher tortoise burrows in accordance with FWC Guidelines and 
regulations. 
 
No active or potentially active burrows were located or identified on the subject site. The 
Survey results are shown on Exhibit 10.  
 
Eastern Indigo Snake, Drymarchon corais couperi 
During site surveys conducted for Active, Inactive/Potential Occupied or Abandoned 
Gopher Tortoise Burrows in compliance with the most current FWC Gopher Tortoise 
Permitting Guidelines, a pedestrian survey for Eastern Indigo Snakes should also be 
completed following the FWS September 2011 Survey Protocol for the Eastern 
Indigo Snake, Drymarchon couperi, in North and Central Florida.  

http://ecos.fws.gov/SpeciesProfile?spcode=C026


April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 9 of 14 

 

  
 At least 30 days prior to any clearing/land alteration activities and/or during any 
excavation activities associated with Gopher Tortoise relocation, if necessary, it is 
recommended the applicant agree to implement the AUGUST 12, 2013, STANDARD 
PROTECTION MEASURES FOR THE EASTERN INDIGO SNAKE on the subject site. 
 
SAND SKINK (Neoseps reynoldsi) 
The Sand Skink is listed as “Threatened” by the USFWS and is endemic to the sandy 
ridges of central Florida, occurring in Highlands, Lake, Marion, Orange, Osceola, Polk, 
and Putnam counties (Christman, 1988). 
 
Principal populations occur on the Lake Wales and Winter Haven Ridges in Highlands, 
Lake, and Polk counties. The sand skink is uncommon on the Mount Dora Ridge, 
including sites within the Ocala NF (Christman, 1970, 1992). As of 1997, there were 114 
locality records for the sand skink, most of which are found within the Lake Wales Ridge.  
 
The density of the sand skink varies considerably (Sutton 1996), attributing differences 
in abundance to habitat suitability. Seasonally, sand skinks are most active from mid-
February through mid-May and again in late summer-early fall. Activity patterns suggest 
sand skinks are active during the morning and evening (Andrews 1994). 
 
A review of the 2012 Sand Skink Species Consultation Area Map, site elevation and 
mapped soil types on-site, would suggest that appropriate habitat may be present for the 
Sand Skinks. It should be noted that all lands in Lake County comprised of well drained 
soil and are above elevation 82’ are identified by USFWS as potential Sand Skink 
Habitat, regardless of prior site alterations or existing uses. 

 
Sand Skinks prefer areas free of abundant plant roots, with open canopies, scattered 
shrubby vegetation, and patches of bare sand (Christman, 1978, 1992). Past 
disturbance, lack of any managed or prescribed fire program due to location within the 
City limits, density of grass root zone, continual agricultural maintenance, and extensive 
vegetation root system could exclude the area from being potentially occupied or utilized 
by sand skinks. 
 
Habitat: 
The sand skink is a unique lizard adapted to an underground existence. The sand skink 
inhabits loose sands of sand pine-rosemary scrub, less often longleaf pine-turkey oak 
(sandhill) or turkey oak "barrens" adjacent to scrub, especially high pine-scrub ecotones 
(Telford, 1998). Sometimes this lizard occurs in areas with dense undergrowth and 
extensive canopy closure (Mushinsky, 1998). It is basically fossorial (usually within 8 cm 
of surface) but sometimes can be found under logs, leaf litter, and other surface debris 
(Bartlett and Bartlett, 1999). Well-drained sands in open glades free of rooted plants are 
optimal, whereas dry, porous sands are unfavorable; moisture under leaf litter is 
important in regulation of body temperature (thermoregulation), successful egg 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 10 of 14 

 

incubation and conditions favorable for the skink’s prey (Telford, 1959). The sand skink 
eats mainly beetle larvae and termites, also adult beetles, spiders, caterpillars, and larval 
antlions (Telford, 1969; Sutton, 1996). 
 
During the inspection and evaluation of lands associated with development and 
alteration no field evidence suggesting the presence of Sand Skinks was observed.  
 
Prior to development it is recommended that Pre-Consultation occur with USFWS and 
the results of that consultation be complied with. 
 
UPDATE: On October 18th 2018 the subject site was evaluated for the presence of Sand 
Skink Habitat.  
Survey Methodology: 
Investigative field surveys for Sand Skinks were conducted by William (Bill) A. Ray, 
AICP / Environmental Specialist. 100% of the suitable upland habitat for Sand Skinks 
was surveyed via pedestrian transects with approximate 50-Meter Spacing on April 25th  
of 2018 and again on October 18th, 2018. 
  
Sand skink survey Protocols identified and described in the USFWS document Sand 
Skink Survey Protocols; April 11th, 2011 were followed.  Specific attention was given to 
searching for the “sinusoidal (“S”-shaped) track at the soil surface which can be readily 
identified through the visual pedestrian survey. The few areas of minimal vegetation or 
bare soil were examined for evidence of sand skinks.  
 
The location of Pedestrian Transects can be found on Exhibit 4. 
 
Approximately 1.2+/- acres of the 1.74 Acre site is above elevating 82’ in an area of 
Candler Sands and is therefore is mapped within the FWS Sand Skink consultation area. 
The lack of potentially suitable habitat associated with dense Tree / Vegetation cover, 
the absence of any open sandy areas, dense vegetation and root density, and lack of 
connectivity to additional habitat could exclude the area from being potentially occupied 
or utilized by sand skinks. 
 
The dominate site characteristics such as thick tree and vegetation cover, tight 
compacted soils combined with an absence of open sandy areas of soil are not generally 
associated with Sand Skink Habitat. No areas loose sands of sand pine-rosemary scrub, 
longleaf pine-turkey oak (sandhill) or turkey oak "barrens" adjacent to scrub, especially 
high pine-scrub ecotones are identified or observed on or adjacent to the subject site. 
 
Recent site investigations and pedestrian surveys on October 18th, 2018 did not observe 
the presence of Sand Skinks. No sand skinks, sand skink sign or evidence to suggest 
the presence of sand skinks was observed on-site during field investigations.  

 
 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 11 of 14 

 

 No other protected animal species were observed or identified on the subject site. No Critical or 
Essential Habitat of a Listed Species was identified on the subject site. No evidence observed in 
the field indicated the presence of: 
 

Florida Scrub Jay  Aphelocoma coerulescens  ST 
Florida Sandhill Crane  Grus canadensis pratensis  ST 

  Florida mouse   Peromyscus floridanus  SSC 
Short-tailed snake  Stilosome extenuatum  ST 
Florida Pine snake  Pituophis melanoleucus mugitus SSC 
Red Rat snake  Elaphe guttata    SSC 
Burrowing Owl    Athene cuniculari   SSC 
Red-cockaded woodpecker Picoides borealis   FE 

 
The location of Pedestrian Transects can be found on Exhibit 4. 
 

III. Conclusions and Recommendations 
The Project Site is bounded on the north, east and south by existing roads, Medium density and 
Rural development and to the west by developed disturbed lands.   
 
On-site upland habitat type is an urban wooded “Lot” with various scattered temperate 
deciduous trees and associated shrubs. (see Site Photos Exhibit 3). China berry and golden 
raintree, both invasive exotic species, are establishing canopy dominance. There was no 
evidence observed to suggest prescribed burning or historic fires on site. Based upon the 
proximity to existing Commercial and Residential development combined with the general 
urbanizing trend of the area it is highly unlikely that prescribed burning will ever be allowed as a 
site management tool.   
 
The on-site uplands that are proposed for in-fill development contain dense and extensive 
vegetation root structure. There are no areas of open sandy soil or Xeric plant communities, 
which are indicators of Sand Skink habitat, located on the subject site. 
 
August 26, 2019 Update 
Pedestrian Surveys were conducted based upon North-South Transects beginning on the south 
property line with a Total of 11 Transects. A Current Pedestrian Survey was conducted on 
August 26th of 2019. No additional or new information was observed. 
 
October 18th, 2018 Update 
The Project Site is mapped within the USFWS Sand Skink Consultation area. The subject site 
could be excluded from being potentially occupied or utilized by Sand Skinks due to; 

1. Lack of connectivity to appropriate upland soils,  
2. The absence of potentially suitable habitat on-site,  
3. The total absence of any site burning activities, 
4. The subject site contains no significant stands or concentrations of native 

scrub/shrub or forest communities and  

http://www.fws.gov/northflorida/Species-Accounts/Fla-Scrub-Jay-2005.htm


April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 12 of 14 

 

5. Extensive vegetation, closed canopy and dense vegetation root system  
 
The site located within an area of Lake County that generally surrounded by either existing sub-
urban or urbanizing development on 4 sides.  
 
See Site Photos Exhibit 3. There was no evidence observed to suggest prescribed burning or 
historic fires on site. Based upon the proximity to existing Residential and sub-urban 
development combined with the general urbanizing trend of the area it is highly unlikely that 
prescribed burning will ever be allowed as a site management tool.   
 
The obstructions observed in the field prevent habitat and soil continuity to adjacent Candler 
and Sand mapped areas. It is important to note that all these adjacent soils on site are highly 
altered and currently developed, compacted and do not support native habitat. It has been 
determined by the FWS that such physical barriers (e.g., canals, paved roads, development, 
etc.) preclude skinks from accessing suitable soils (FWS Survey Protocol, 2011). 
 
The density of the tree/shrub/grass community also contributes to the density of the root system 
below the ground. Areas containing excessive rooted vegetation that may preclude sand skink 
movement are less likely to be used by skinks (FWS Survey Protocol 2002). Sand skinks prefer 
areas free of abundant plant roots, with open canopies, scattered shrubby vegetation, and 
patches of bare sand (Christman, 1978, 1992). None of these conditions are found or observed 
on the subject site. 
 
After a thorough review of the proposed development plan and the evaluation of the subject site 
it is recommended a determination be issued by USFWS that the subject site does not contain 
Sand Skink Habitat and development of the subject site as proposed will have “No Effect” upon 
Sand Skinks. See Exhibit 11 for USFWS Concurrence with these findings. 
 
At the time of the original and this updated survey No active or potentially active Gopher 
Tortoise burrows were observed on the subject site.  
 
Habitat observed on the subject site is not typically occupied by Gopher tortoises. 
   
The subject site development does not propose impact to any unique or ecologically significant 
area of vegetation of Habitat.  
 
August 26, 2019 Update 
 
It is the recommendation of Ray and Associates that the subject site plan be approved for 
development as proposed provided there is demonstration of compliance with Local, State and 
Federal regulations.  
 
 
 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 13 of 14 

 

References: 
Andrews, R.M. 1994. Activity and Thermal Biology of The Sand-Swimming Skink Neoseps reynoldsi: Diel 
and Seasonal Patterns. Copeia 1994(1):91-99. 
 
Bartlett, R.D. and Bartlett, P.P. 1999. A Field Guide to Florida Reptiles and Amphibians. Gulf Publishing 
Company, Houston, Texas. 
 
Christman, S.P. 1970. The possible evolutionary history of two Florida skinks. Quarterly Journal of the 
Florida Acadamy of Science 33(4):291-293. 
 
Christman, S.P. 1978. Threatened: sand skink, Neoseps reynoldsi (Stejneger). Pages 40-41 in R. 
W.McDiarmid, ed. Rare and endangered biota of Florida. volume 3: amphibians and reptiles. 
University Press of Florida; Gainesville, Florida. 
 
Christman, S.P. 1988. Endemism and Florida’s Interior Sand Pine Scrub. Final Project Report No. GFC-84- 
010, Florida Game and Fresh Water Fish Commission; Tallahassee, Florida. 
 
Christman, S.P. 1992a. Threatened: Sand Skink, Neoseps reynoldsi (Stejneger). Pages 135-140 in P.E. 
Moler, editor. Rare and Endangered Biota of Florida. University Press of Florida, Gainesville, 
Florida. 
 
Collazos, A. 1998. Microhabitat Selection in Neoseps reynoldsi: The Florida Sand Swimming Skink.  
M.S.Thesis. University of South Florida; Tampa, Florida. 
 
Gianopulos, K.D. 2001. Response of the Threatened Sand Skink (Neoseps Reynoldsi) and Other 
Herpetofaunal Species to Burning and Clearcutting in the Florida Sand Pine Scrub Habitat. M.S. 
Thesis, University of South Florida. 
 
Hill, K. 1999. Responses of Released Populations of the Sand Skink, Neoseps Reynoldsi, to Scrub Habitat 
Translocation in Central Florida. M.S. Thesis. University of South Florida; Tampa Florida. 
 
Meshaka Jr., W.E. and J.N. Layne. 2002 Herpetofauna of a Long Unburned Sandhill in Southcentral 
Florida. Florida Scientist 65(1):35-50. 
 
Mushinsky, H.R., and R. Jaeger. 1998. Points of view on contemporary education in herpetology. 
Herpetologica 54: 1-2. 
 

Mushinsky, H.R. and McCoy. 1999. Studies of the Sand Skink (Neoseps Reynoldsi) in Central Florida. 
Final Report to Walt Disney Imagineering. University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida. 
 
Mushinsky, H.R. E.D. McCoy, K. Gianopulos, K. Penney and C. Meyer. 2001. Biology of the Threatened 
Sand Skink of Restored Scrub Habitat and Their Responses To Land Management Practices. 
Final Report to Disney Wildlife Conservation Fund. University of South Florida, Tampa, Florida. 
 
Sutton, P.E. 1996. A mark and recapture study of the Florida sand skink Neoseps reynoldsi and a  
comparison of sand skink sampling methods. Unpublished master’s thesis, University of South 



April 25th 2018 Update 10/18/2018 
2nd Update November 1st, 2018 
3rd Update August 26, 2019 
Ray and Associates  
Tejinder Grewal 
Page 14 of 14 

 

Florida; Tampa, Florida. 
 
Telford, S.R., Jr. 1959. A study of the sand skink, Neoseps reynoldsi. Copeia 1959 (2):100-119. 
 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service [FWS]. 2011. Sand and Bluetail Mole Skink Proposed Survey Protocol. 
www.fws.gov/verobeach/images/pdflibrary/20110404_Skink%20Survey%20Protocol.pdf. 
 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service [FWS]. 2002. Sand and Bluetail Mole Skink Survey Protocol. 
www.fws.gov/northflorida/Skink/Skink%20Survey%20Protocol-072602.pdf. 
 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service [FWS]. 1999. South Florida Sand Skink Multi-Species Recovery Plan; 
Atlanta Georgia. www.fws.gov/verobeach/index.cfm?Method=programs&Nav Program 
Category ID=3&programID=107&ProgramCategoryID=3. 
 
U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service [FWS]. 2004a. Draft Species Conservation Guidelines, Sand Skinks & 
Bluetail Mole Skinks. www.fws.gov/verobeach/images/pdflibrary/Skinks_Species_Guidelines.pdf 
 
 
 
 



Ray and Associates: Exhibit 1: Location

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community
Source: Esri,  DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus
DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

April 24, 2018
0 0.3 0.60.15 mi

0 0.5 10.25 km

1:18,056

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



Ray and Associates: Exhibit 2: Aerial

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife
Research Institute
FDEP
Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

Eagle Nesting
Cadastral 2017 (Property Appraiser Parcels) - Public View

April 24, 2018
0 0.015 0.030.0075 mi

0 0.03 0.060.015 km

1:1,128

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



  

Ray and Associates   
Planning & Environmental 
2712 SE 29th ST, Ocala, Florida 34471 
352-425-8881             
wrayassoc@aol.com 

 
 

Exhibit 3: Site Photos 4.25.2018 
Tejinder Grewal property / 1.74+/- Acres / Sec10, Tw 19S, Rng 24E  
Fruitland Park, Lake County, Florida. 
 

 
South Property Line: East view 

 
East Property line: North view 

 

 
North Property Line: West view: Northern View 

 
West Property Line: South view 



 
Typical Eastern Area; Western View 

 
Typical Central Area; Northern View 

 
Typical Central Area: Western view  

 
Typical Ground Cover: Eastern View 



 

  

Ray and Associates   
Planning & Environmental 
2712 SE 29th ST, Ocala, Florida 34471 
352-425-8881             
wrayassoc@aol.com 

 
 

Exhibit 3.1: Update Site Photos 8.26.2019 
Tejinder Grewal property / 1.74+/- Acres / Sec10, Tw 19S, Rng 24E  
Fruitland Park, Lake County, Florida. 
 

 
South Property Line: Northwest view 

 
East Property line: North view 

 

 
East Property Line: West view 

 
Central Property: South view 



 

 

 
Typical Eastern Area; Western View 

 
Typical Central Area; Northern View 

 
Typical Central Area: Western view  

 
Typical Ground Cover: Central West: Southern View 



Ray and Associates: Exhibit 4: Transects

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
FDEP

Cadastral 2017 (Property Appraiser Parcels) - Public View
April 24, 2018

0 0.015 0.030.0075 mi

0 0.03 0.060.015 km

1:1,128

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



1400: Commercial and Services

1400: Commercial and Services

4340: Upland Mixed - Coniferous / Hardwood

8370: Surface Water Collection Features

1100: Low Density, <2 d

1100: Low Density, <2 dwelling units/acre

Ray and Associates: Exhibit 5: FLUCFCS

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife
Research Institute
FDEP
Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

Eagle Nesting
April 24, 2018

0 0.035 0.070.0175 mi

0 0.06 0.120.03 km

1:2,257

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 

1100:Low Density,<2 
DU/AC 



Arents

Candler sand, 0 to 5 percent slopes

Ray and Associates: Exhibit 6: Soils

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife
Research Institute
FDEP
Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

Eagle Nesting
Florida SSURGO

Alfisols
Bodies of Water
Data Not Available
Entisols
Histosols

Inceptisols
Mollisols
No Soil
Spodosols
Ultisols
Vertisols
Cadastral 2017 (Property Appraiser Parcels) - Public View

April 24, 2018
0 0.035 0.070.0175 mi

0 0.06 0.120.03 km

1:2,257

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



100

95

90

80

85

Ray and Associates: Exhibit 7: Topo

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife
Research Institute
FDEP
Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

Eagle Nesting
Elevation Contours and Depressions

0 - 10
10 - 20
20 - 30
30 - 40
40 - 50

50 - 60
60 - 70
70 - 80
80 - 90
90 - 100
100 - 125
125 - 150

150 - 175
175 - 200
200 - 225
225 - 250
250 - 275
275 - 300
300 - 350

April 24, 2018
0 0.015 0.030.0075 mi

0 0.03 0.060.015 km

1:1,128

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



PEM1G

PAB3H

PEM1G
PUBH

PEM1F

ray and Associates: Exhibit 8: Wetlands

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife

Eagle Nesting
April 24, 2018

0 0.15 0.30.075 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



2000

2016

Ray and Associates: Exhibit 9: FWC Bald Eagle Nests

Esri,  HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission - Fish and Wildlife

Eagle Nesting
Cadastral 2017 (Property Appraiser Parcels) - Public View

April 24, 2018
0 0.6 1.20.3 mi

0 1 20.5 km

1:36,112

Florida Department of Environmental Protection makes no warranty,expressed or implied,or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy,completeness,or usefulness of any information,apparatus,product,or process disclosed,or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights.
Map created by Map Direct, powered by ESRI. 



 

 
 

Ray and Associates   
Planning & Environmental 
2712 SE 29th Street Ocala, Florida 34471 
352-425-8881             wrayassoc@aol.com 

 

Exhibit 1: Gopher Tortoise Survey 
Tejinder Grewal 1.74 Acre site.  Alt Key: 1170621 / 10-19-24-0003-000-6800 
Fruitland Park, Lake County 
 

 
 

 

 
  
 Subject: Gopher Tortoise Survey: 1.74 Acre site; Alt Key# 1170621 / Parcel # 10-19-25-0003-000-6800  
   

On October 18th, 2018 Ray and Associates competed a Gopher Tortoise survey in accordance with FWC Regulations and Requirements on the subject lots. The 
purpose of the survey was to identify and locate Active/Potentially Active/Abandoned Gopher Tortoise Burrows on or within 25’ of the subject sites. FWC Protocols 
outlining Gopher Tortoise Surveys were followed and conducted by FWC Authorized Gopher Tortoise Agent, Mike Howe.  
No Active or Potentially Active Burrous were located on or within 25’ of subject site 
4 mammal burrows were identified and require no additional action or permitting.   
This survey is valid for 90 days. 



1

wrayassoc@aol.com

From: Erin Gawera <erin_gawera@fws.gov>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 1:22 PM
To: wrayassoc@aol.com
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Pre Consultation Grewal Tract Lake County Fruitland park, FL

Hi Bill, 

Thank you for your comprehensive, detailed, and easy to read report.  The Service agrees with you and does not believe 
a cover board survey will be necessary.  The photos and site description clearly show that the property is covered in 
thick vegetation and does not have any suitable habitat for sand skinks on site.  We do not believe sand skinks will be 
impacted by development of this property.   

I hope you are having a great week and are doing well, 

Erin 

*********************************************** 
Erin M. Gawera, Fish and Wildlife Biologist 
US Fish and Wildlife Service 
Email: erin_gawera@fws.gov 
http://www.fws.gov/northflorida 
7915 Baymeadows Way, Suite 200 
Jacksonville, FL 32256-7517 
904/731-3121 (direct) 
904/731-3336 (main) 
Fax: 904/731-3045 or 3048 

NOTE: This email correspondence and any attachments to and from this sender is subject to 
the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and may be disclosed to third parties. 

From: wrayassoc@aol.com <wrayassoc@aol.com>  
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 12:24 PM 
To: Erin Gawera <erin_gawera@fws.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Pre Consultation Grewal Tract Lake County Fruitland park, FL 

Erin, Attached please find an updated Biological/ Natural resource Site Assessment for a 1.74 Acre Site in Fruitland Park, 
Florida.  
We conducted Site investigations on April 25th and again on October 18th for the purpose if completing and Updating 
the subject property.  
100% of the site was site surveyed. 

During the investigations no evidence of Sand skink habitat was observed.  
The site is densely vegetated with extensive ground cover and a predominantly closed tree canopy. There were no areas 
of open sand or native Xeric upland scrub observed on site.  

It is our recommendation that the USFWS concur with the findings of our report that the subject site does not contain 
Sand Skink Habitat and that development of the subject site will have “No effect” upon Sand Skinks. 

Ray and Associates: Exhibit 11: USFWS Concurance on "No Habitat" "No Effect".



2

  
Do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information 
  
  
Thank you, 
Bill 
  
William (Bill) A. Ray, AICP 
Ray & Associates 
Planning & Environmental 
2712 SE 29th Street 
Ocala, FL 34471 
352‐425‐8881 
wrayassoc@aol.com 
  
  
    











Geotechnical Investigation, Proposed Building Area, Stormwater Retention/Exfiltration Areas, and Paved 
Parking/Drive Areas, Proposed IC International Carwash, Fruitland Park, Lake County, Florida 

Page 5 

More specific recommendations for the building area, paved parking/drive areas, stormwater 
retention pond area, and exfiltration system area are provided below. 

Site Preparation 

The building area and parking/drive areas, plus a minimum margin of 5 feet beyond their outer lines, 
should be cleared and stripped to remove all surface vegetation, roots, topsoil, organic debris, or 
any other encountered deleterious materials. After clearing, grubbing, and any necessary additional 
site preparation efforts, the exposed soils for the building area should then be proof rolled and 
compacted to a minimum of 95% of the soil's modified Proctor maximum dry density as determined 
by ASTM Specification D-1557 before any fill material is placed. Compaction should be completed 
to a depth of 2 feet below exposed subgrade. The exposed subgrade within pavement areas should 
be proof rolled and compacted to a minimum of 95% of the soil's modified Proctor maximum dry 
density to a depth of 1 foot. All fill required to bring the site to final grade should be inorganic, non
plastic, granular soil (clean sands) with less than 10% passing a U.S #200 sieve. In structural areas, 
the fill should be placed in level lifts not to exceed 12 inches loose and should be compacted to a 
minimum of 95% of the soil's modified Proctor maximum dry density as determined by ASTM 
Specification D-1557. In-place density tests should be performed on each lift by an experienced 
engineering technician working under the direction of a registered geotechnical engineer to verify 
that the recommended degree of compaction has been achieved. We suggest a minimum testing 
frequency of one (1) test per lift per 2,500 square feet of area within structural limits and one (1) test 
per lift per 10,000 square feet in pavement areas. This fill should extend a minimum of 5 feet beyond 
building lines to prevent possible erosion or undermining of footing bearing soils. Further, fill slopes 
should not exceed 2 horizontal to 1 vertical (2H: 1V). All fill placed in utility line trenches and 
adjacent to footings beneath slabs on grade should also be properly placed and compacted to the 
specifications stated above. However, in these restricted working areas, compaction should be 
accomplished with lightweight, hand-guided compaction equipment and lift thicknesses should be 
limited to a maximum of 4 inches loose thickness. 

Foundation Design 

Once the existing subgrade and new fill soils in the proposed structural support areas have been 
prepared in accordance with the preceding recommendations, the proposed building can be 
constructed on a system of conventional shallow spread or strip footings bearing at minimum depths 
below the finished floor elevations. Footings, which bear in densified existing soils or in new 
structural fill, may be designed based on a maximum allowable bearing pressure of 2,500 pounds 
per square foot. Minimum footing dimensions of 18 inches for strip footings and 24 inches for 
column footings should be used even though the maximum allowable bearing pressures may not be 
fully developed in all cases. Footings should bear at least 18 inches below finished exterior grades. 
Footing subgrade soils should be approved by the geotechnical engineer prior to placement of 
concrete and steel. As a minimum acceptance criterium, the footing subgrade soils should be 
compacted to a minimum density of 95% of the soils modified Proctor maximum dry density for a 
depth of 24 inches. 

The Villages 
352-751-2478 

Fax 352-751-2633 

Ocala 
352-401-9522 

Fax 352-401-9523 

Clermont 
352-241-0508 

Fax 352-241-0977 

St. Petersburg 
727-527-5735 

Fax 727-527-6084 





















STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DRIVEWAY CONNECTION PERMIT 
FOR ALL CATEGORIES

Access Classification:

See following pages for General and Special Provisions

PART 1:  PERMIT INFORMATION

APPLICATION NUMBER:

Permit Category:

Project:

Permittee:

Section/Mile Post: State Road:

Section/Mile Post: State Road:

PART 2:  PERMITTEE INFORMATION

Permittee Name:

Permittee Mailing Address:

City, State, Zip:

Telephone:

Engineer/Consultant/or Project Manager:

Engineer responsible for construction inspection:
NAME P.E. #

Mailing Address:

City, State, Zip:

Telephone:

PART 3:  PERMIT APPROVAL

The above application has been reviewed and is hereby approved subject to all Provisions as attached.

Permit Number:

Department of Transportation

Title:

Special provisions attached

Date of Issuance:

Signature:

Department Representative's Printed Name

Temporary Permit (If temporary, this permit is only valid for 6 months)

If this is a normal (non-temporary) permit it authorizes construction for one year from the date of issuance.  This can only be 
extended by the Department as specified in 14-96.007(6).

SYSTEMS PLANNING - 06/06

850-040-18

NOYES

NOYES

Page 1 of 3

Rule 14-96, F.A.C.

FAX, Mobile Phone, etc.

2018-A-592-051

Ted Wicks

Ted Wicks

International Carwash

33274

MAINTENANCE MANAGER/CONTRACTS & PERMITS

225 West Main Street

2018-A-592-051

Ted Wicks

✔

Todd Croft

Tavares, Florida 32778

✔

Ted Wicks

11040000 / 5.886

Tavares, Florida 32778

 /

(352) 343-8667 ext. ______

225 West Main Street

4/3/2019

B - 21 to 600 VTPD 5

Fax:  / Mobile:

Todd Croft

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



PART 4:  GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Notify the Department of Transportation Maintenance Office at least 48 hours in advance of starting proposed 
work.
Phone: , Attention:

2. A copy of the approved permit must be displayed in a prominent location in the immediate vicinity of the 
connection construction.

3.

Comply with Rule 14-96.008(7), F.A.C., on Utility Notification Requirements.4.

Comply with Rule 14-96.008(1), F.A.C.,  Disruption of Traffic.

5. All work performed in the Department's right of way shall be done in accordance with the most current Department 
standards, specifications and the permit provisions.

6. The permittee shall not commence use of the connection prior to a final inspection and acceptance by the 
Department.

7. Comply with Rule 14-96.003(3)(a), F.A.C., Cost of Construction.

8. If a Significant Change of the permittee's land use, as defined in Section 335.182, Florida Statutes, occurs, the 
Permittee must contact the Department.

9. Medians may be added and median openings may be changed by the Department as part of a
Construction Project or Safety Project.  The provision for a median might change the operation of the connection 
to be for right turns only.

10. All conditions in NOTICE OF INTENT WILL APPLY unless specifically changed by the Department.

11. All approved connection(s) and turning movements are subject to the Department's continuing authority to modify 
such connection(s) or turning movements in order to protect safety and traffic operations on the state highway or 
State Highway System.

12. Transportation Control Features and Devices in the State Right of Way.  Transportation control features and 
devices in the Department's right of way, including, but not limited to, traffic signals, medians, median openings, or 
any other transportation control features or devices in the state right of way, are operational and safety 
characteristics of the State Highway and are not means of access.  The Department may install, remove or modify 
any present or future transportation control feature or device in the state right of way to make changes to promote 
safety in the right of way or efficient traffic operations on the highway.

13. The Permittee for him/herself, his/her heirs, his/her assigns and successors in interest, binds and is bound and 
obligated to save and hold the State of Florida, and the Department, its agents and employees harmless from any 
and all damages, claims, expense, or injuries arising out of any act, neglect, or omission by the applicant, his/her 
heirs, assigns and successors in interest that may occur by reason of this facility design, construction, 
maintenance, or continuing existence of the connection facility,except that the applicant shall not be liable under 
this provision for damages arising from the sole negligence of the Department.

14. The Permittee shall be responsible for determining and notify all other users of the right of way.

15. Starting work on the State Right of Way means that I am accepting all conditions on the Permit.

SYSTEMS PLANNING - 06/06
850-040-18

Page 2 of 3

Rule 14-96, F.A.C.

3523267777 David Mcdonald

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



NOYES

OTHER SPECIAL PROVISIONS:

PART 5:  SPECIAL PROVISIONS

NON-CONFORMING CONNECTIONS:

If this is a non-conforming connection permit, as defined in Rule Chapters 14-96 and 14-97, then the following shall be a part of this 
permit.

1. The non-conforming connection(s) described in this permit is (are) not permitted for traffic volumes exceeding the Permit 
Category on page 1 of this permit, or as specified in "Other Special Provisions" below.

2. All non-conforming connections will be subject to closure or relocation when reasonable access becomes available in the 
future.

PART 6:  APPEAL PROCEDURES
You may petition for an administrative hearing pursuant to sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes.  If you dispute the facts stated in the 
foregoing Notice of Intended Department Action (hereinafter Notice), you may petition for a formal administrative hearing pursuant to section 120.57
(1), Florida Statutes.  If you agree with the facts stated in the Notice, you may petition for an informal administrative hearing pursuant to section 
120.57(2), Florida Statutes.  You must file the petition with:

Clerk of Agency Proceedings 
Department of Transportation 
Haydon Burns Building 
605 Suwannee Street, M.S. 58 
Tallahassee, Florida  32399-0458

1.

The petition for an administrative hearing must conform to the requirements of Rule 28-106.201(2) or Rule 28-106.301(2), Florida Administrative 
Code, and be filed with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings by 5:00 p.m. no later than 21 days after you received the Notice.  The petition must include 
a copy of the Notice, be legible, on 8 1/2 by 11 inch white paper, and contain:

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

If there are disputed issues of material fact a formal hearing will be held, where you may present evidence and argument on all issues involved and 
conduct cross-examination.  If there are no disputed issues of material fact an informal hearing will be held, where you may present evidence or a 
written statement for consideration by the Department.

Mediation, pursuant to section 120.573, Florida Statutes, may be available if agreed to by all parties, and on such terms as may be agreed upon by 
all parties.  The right to an adminstrative hearing is not affected when mediation does not result in a settlement.

Your petition for an administrative hearing shall be dismissed if it is not in substantial compliance with the above requirements of Rule 28-106.201(2) 
or Rule 28-106.301(2), Florida Administrative Code.  If you fail to timely file your petition in accordance with the above requirements, you will have 
waived your right to have the intended action reviewed pursuant to chapter 120, Florida Statutes, and the action set forth in the Notice shall be 
conclusive and final.

Your name, address, telephone number, any Department of Transportation identifying number on the Notice, if known, the name and 
identification number of each agency affected, if known, and the name, address, and telephone number of your representative, if any, 
which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding.

An explanation of how your substantial interests will be affected by the action described in the Notice;

A statement of when and how you received the Notice;

A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, you must so indicate;

A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts you contend warrant reversal or modification of the agency's 
proposed action, as well as an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules and statutes you contend require reversal 
or modification of the agency's proposed action;

A statement of the relief sought, stating precisely the desired action you wish the agency to take in respect to the agency's proposed 
action.

SYSTEMS PLANNING - 06/06
850-040-18

Page 3 of 3

Rule 14-96, F.A.C.

• Prior to completing the permitted work, the Permittee shall deliver all signs, sign posts, and sign
bases removed as part of the permitted work to FDOT Leesburg Operations, 1405 Thomas Avenue,
Leesburg, FL 34748. (If applicable)
• Upon finishing the permitted work and site restoration, permittee shall certify the construction
completion using the OSP system.

✔

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

US Highway 27/441
IC International Carwash

Wicks Engineering Services, Inc.

Fruitland Park, Fl. 34731

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 1 DW Permit Cover, 3/28/2019 6:15:20 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cover Sheet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=1000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
A part of Southeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 10, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, in Lake County, Florida, bounded and described as follows: Beginning at a point 566.5 feet South and 100 feet East of the Northwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of said Section; run thence East 100 feet; thence South 200 feet to the North line of the Highway; thence Northwesterly along the North line of the Highway, a distance of 110.5 feet to a point South of the Point of Beginning; thence North 153.1 feet to the Point of Beginning.  AND: That part of the North 229 feet of the South 991 feet of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 10, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, in Lake County, Florida, lying West of the Westerly line of the right of way of U.S. Highway No. 27. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 COVER SHEET COVER SHEET 2 MASTER PLAN MASTER PLAN 3 DEMOLITION & SITE PLAN DEMOLITION & SITE PLAN 4 DRAINAGE PLAN DRAINAGE PLAN 5 PLAN & PROFILE PLAN & PROFILE 6 DETAILS DETAILS 7 NEIGHBORING CONNECTION NEIGHBORING CONNECTION PLAN PER FAC 14.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDEX OF SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC. Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, Florida 33473 ALTERNATE KEY #1170621

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cata  wba

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lime 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seminole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gri ffin

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mirror

AutoCAD SHX Text
Beam St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seagle St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Forest

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bidwell St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plumosa  Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pennsylvan ia 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tropic Cir

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phoenix

AutoCAD SHX Text
Russer Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
Grizzard

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lemon St

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mirror

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dream

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dead

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICCIOLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUTOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5509

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAILFISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE 1-5509A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AV 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5409B

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARFISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AV 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5409A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5409

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
Palm

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fox

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lavi s t  a

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitl and

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5407

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dr

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dr

AutoCAD SHX Text
Thoma s

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Berck  man

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Magnolia Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mirror

AutoCAD SHX Text
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hamlet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ct

AutoCAD SHX Text
Village

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ct

AutoCAD SHX Text
Victoria 

AutoCAD SHX Text
       Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Areca 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGFISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5409B

AutoCAD SHX Text
BREAM CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5409C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5507

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORGANS M.H.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
& FISH CAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE MHP BOOK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
     River

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Olive Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wilder St

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mayfield Av

AutoCAD SHX Text
James

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert

AutoCAD SHX Text
St

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.Acorn Cr

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.William Dr

AutoCAD SHX Text
25A

AutoCAD SHX Text
441

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
460

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
466A

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW AV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPANISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5310B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5310A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-5205

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 2 DW Permit Master Plan, 3/28/2019 6:15:21 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROAD 500 HIGHWAY 441 / 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. DIXIE AVENUE C.R. 25A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTRESS FIRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1"=60')

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRY RETENTION POND TOP 84.5 BTM 78.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CARWASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE 88.00



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 3 DW Permit Site Plan, 3/28/2019 6:15:22 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'30"E  178.05' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S24°00'41"E  250.78' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'30"E  274.44' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 S.F. MONUMENT SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT TYPE "D" CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE III SILT FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE III SILT FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TYPE "F" CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST R/W 441/27

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x8' ENKAMAT EROSION CONTROL MAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1"=30')

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION & SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1. ALL CONSTRUCTION METHODS AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE "LATEST EDITION" OF THE DESIGN STANDARDS, STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND THE UTILITY ACCOMMODATION MANUEL. 2. ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE GRADED AND SODDED WITH LIKE-KIND SOD. 3. ALL STRIPING WITHIN FDOT R/W WILL BE LEAD-FREE THERMOPLASTIC & BE PER INDEX 17346. 4. ALL MOT SHALL BE PER THE 2017 DESIGN STANDARDS 600 SERIES FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHIN FDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROAD 500 HIGHWAY 441 / 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROAD 500 HIGHWAY 441 / 27



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 4 DW Permit Drainage Plan, 3/28/2019 6:15:23 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'30"E  178.05' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S24°00'41"E  250.78' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°57'30"E  274.44' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1"=30')

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL STRUCTURE TYPE "D" INLET GRATE EL. 88.70 4'1" SLOT SW INV. 87.00 INV. 85.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROAD 500 HIGHWAY 441 / 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROAD 500 HIGHWAY 441 / 27



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 5 DW Permit Drainage Plan, 3/28/2019 6:15:24 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL PROFILE EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL PROFILE PGL

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATUM ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+80

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1+60

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2+40

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL SERVICE ROAD CL STORM INLET C STA. 1+65.30 TOP 84.31  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL SERVICE ROAD STA. 1+29.87 EL 85.88  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL SERVICE ROAD STA. 0+82.38 EL 87.78  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL SERVICE ROAD STA. 0+37.67 EL 89.08  

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE DUMPSTER PAD STA. 0+20.00 EL 89.48  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL STORM INLET B STA. 0+63.36 TOP 88.48  

AutoCAD SHX Text
K = 12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.D. = -2.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI ELEV = 88.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI STA = 0+62.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
BVCS: 0+49.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
BVCE: 88.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVCS: 0+74.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVCE: 88.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
88.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI STA  = 1+47.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVI ELEV = 85.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
82.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 83.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 83.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 81.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 81.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
101 LF-18" RCP @ 2.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" PVC WATER SERVICE LINE 12" MINIMUM CLEARANCE FROM OUTSIDE EDGE OF STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" PVC FM  12" MINIMUM CLEARANCE FROM OUTSIDE EDGE OF STORM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30' HORZ.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE PLAN & PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"= 7.5' VERT.



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 6 DW Permit Civil Details, 3/28/2019 6:15:25 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW THE TOP OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" MIN. AND 2" MAXIMUM, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SOD TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USOD PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIME ROCK BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT TYPE D CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT TYPE D CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAV'T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. JOINT AND PREFORMED JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge Of Pavt.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" LIMEROCK BASE COMPACTED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
98%%% MIN. DENSITY AASHTO T-180

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PRIMED)(2-LIFTS)(LBR 100)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 98%%% DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(LBR 40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT ASPHALT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" TYPE SP 12.5 STRUCTURAL ASPHALT & 1.5" TYPE FC 12.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" TYPE SP 12.5 STRUCTURAL ASPHALT & 1.5" TYPE FC 12.5



W
ic

ks
 E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

D:\Documents\Projects\Wicks\CarWash\17136 Car Wash Total.dwg, Sht 7 DW Permit Neighboring Plan, 3/28/2019 6:15:27 PM, Rob, AutoCAD PDF (General Documentation).pc3, Previous paper size (17.00 x 11.00 Inches), 1:1

Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
US HWY 27/441

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ALTERNATE KEY #1170621

AutoCAD SHX Text
406'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
186'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
US HWY 27/441

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ALTERNATE KEY #1170621

AutoCAD SHX Text
406'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
186'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fruitland Park, Florida

AutoCAD SHX Text
IC International Carwash

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:   Of 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:         DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:  NSR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date: 10-25-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
File No.: 17136

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked: TL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:                        33274

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH R. WICKS, P.E.   FL. REG. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida 32778 www.wicksengineering.com (352) 343-8667 C.A. #30062

AutoCAD SHX Text
Owner: : Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC Tejinder S. Greenwall 1330 Saxon Blvd. Orange City, FL. 32763

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 11-02-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 01-09-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT COMMENTS 02-10-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 02-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN REVISION 03-29-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEIGHBORING PLAN PER FAC 14.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1"=100')

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1"=60')

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



Approved
2018-A-592-051

Todd Croft
4/3/2019



























































































































PAINTED STUCCO
METAL LOUVER
PAINTED STUCCO W/REVEALS
STOREFRONT GLAZING
PAINTED CONCRETE COLUMN
PAINTED STUCCO

ROOF:
BERRIDGE STANDING SEAM
SHASTA WHITE

WALLS:
STUCCO PAINTED:

METAL LOUVERS
AND DOORS:
POWDER COATED:

PAINT FACADE
PER ELEVATIONS
UTILIZING PAINT
COLORS SHOWN.

METAL ROOF

METAL LOUVER





 
CIVIL ENGINEERING ♦ LAND DEVELOPMENT ♦  ENVIRONMENTAL AND W ATER RESOURCES ENGINEERING  

 
 
 
 

  
 
August 9, 2019 
 
Tracy Kelly 
City of Fruitland Park Community Development 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 
 
RE:   Development/Site Plan Application – IC International Carwash 

Response to Review Comments dated 6/06/2019 and 6/25/2019 
 
Dear Ms. Kelly: 
 
We have received and reviewed Staff comments dated June 6, 2019 and June 25, 2019, regarding the 
above referenced project.  Please find below our written response which corresponds to your items. 

BESH comments 6/06/2019 

1. Drainage report is enclosed. Please note, drainage calculations assumed 0.85 acres impervious 

(50%) and the actual impervious area is 0.72 acres (42%). 

2. Swale conveyance capacity & velocity calculations are attached (Drainage Calculations Tab 9). 

3. Additional grades have been added to the plan. 

4. Access is not an ADA accessible route, so steps with a handrail are proposed. 

5. Pump station calculations have been added to the plan. 

6. Dumpster has been reconfigured to pick up from the north. 

City Attorney comments 6/25/2019 

1. Survey has been updated showing all easements. 

2. The reciprocal easement allows cross access & drainage. Please note all proposed improvements 

are in compliance with the reciprocal easement. 

This concludes our response to Staff comments.  If there are additional questions or comments regarding 
this response, please contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

Rick Hartenstein 

Rick Hartenstein, AICP, CPM, Planning Project Manager 
 
RH 
 
Enclosures 

 
225 West Main Street   ♦ Tavares, Florida  32778 

P (352) 343-8667 F (352) 343-8665 
 



 
 

ENGINEERS ♦ SURVEYORS ♦ LAND PLANNERS 
902 North Sinclair Avenue  ♦  Tavares, Florida 32778 

Phone: 352.343.8481  ♦  Fax: 352.343.8495 
E-Mail: Info@besandh.com  ♦   www.besandh.com 

Good…Better…BESH! 

 
 
 
 

VIA EMAIL tkelley@fruitlandpark.org  
 
August 13, 2019 
 
Tracy Kelley 
Community Development Director 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 
 
RE: IC INTERNATIONAL CARWASH, FRUITLAND PARK, FL, LAKE COUNTY 
 
Dear Ms. Kelley: 
 
Based upon my review of the most recently submitted material, I recommend approval 
of the site plan with the following conditions. 
 

1. The FDOT drainage permit shall be provided to the city prior to construction. 
 
This condition should be met prior to issuance of a building permit. 
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Brett J. Tobias, P.E. 

btobias@besandh.com 

BJT:am 

http://www.besandh.com/
mailto:tkelley@fruitlandpark.org
mailto:btobias@besandh.com


  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
 SITE PLAN 

 
Owner:   Fruitland Park Holdings, LLC 
 
Applicant: Ted Wicks, P.E., Wicks Engineering Services 
 
General Location: West of US 27/441 and north of Dixie Ave. 
 
Number of Acres:   1.7 ± acres  
 
Existing Zoning:   Commercial (C-2) 
 
Existing Land Use:   Highway Commercial 
 
Date:     August 21, 2019 
 
Description of Project 
The owners are seeking approval of the site plan for a 3,200 square foot car wash facility which 
is a single tunnel automatic carwash with no detailing provided.  The facility will house a small 
office for employees only which is not accessible to customers.  Vacuum stations are provided. 
 

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North C-2 Commercial High Intensity 
South C-2 Commercial High Intensity 
East C-2 Commercial High Intensity 
West C-2 and R-3A Commercial and Multi-family High Density 

 
 
Assessment 
 
Please be advised that a separate sign permit will be required.   Prior to construction, an 
updated environmental assessment shall be required.    
 
 Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval. 


	Permit No. 2018-A-592-051 Approved Permit Package (4).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 1 DW Permit Cover
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 2 DW Permit Master Plan
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 3 DW Permit Site Plan
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 4 DW Permit Drainage Plan
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 5 DW Permit Drainage Plan
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 6 DW Permit Civil Details
	17136 Car Wash Total-Sht 7 DW Permit Neighboring Plan


	Revised Plans received 8_9_19.pdf
	Sht 1 Cover Sheet
	Sht 2 General Notes
	Sht 3 General Utility Notes
	Sht 4 Survey
	Sht 5 Demo and Erosion Control
	Sht 6 Tree Plan
	Sht 7 Site Plan
	Sht 8 Geometry Plan
	Sht 9 Drainage Plan
	Sht 10 Utility Plan
	Sht 11 Autoturn Simulation
	Sht 12 Lift Station Detail
	Sht 13 Construction Details
	Sht 14 Utility Details
	Sht 15 Utility Details

	Stormwater Calculations received 8_9_19.pdf
	Cover & TOC
	Tab 1
	Tab 2
	Tab 3
	Tab 4
	Tab 5
	Tab 6
	Tab 7
	Tab 8
	Tab 9

	Updated Environmental Assessment 8_26_19.pdf
	1. Grewal EA Update 8.26.19
	Exhibit 1 Location
	Exhibit 2 Aerial
	Exhibit 3 Site Photos 4.25.18
	Exhibit 3.1 Site Photos 8.26.19
	Exhibit 4 Transects
	Exhibit 5 FLUCFCS
	Exhibit 6 Soils
	Exhibit 7 Topo
	Exhibit 8 Wetlands
	Exhibit 9 FWC Bald Eagle Nests
	Exhibit 10 Gopher Tortoise Survey
	Exhibit 11 USFWS Concurance, No Effect




